Memorandum

SUNTRUST

Date: October 10, 2013

To: McKnight Brain Research Foundation Trustees
Henry H. Raattama, Jr. Legal Counsel

From: Melanie Cianciotto

Subject: MBRF Meeting: October 22 — 24, 2013 (Tucson, AZ)

Enclosed you will find the meeting package for the October Trustees meeting to be held in
Tucson, AZ. Included in this package for your review are the following items: the agenda,
final draft of the minutes for the July 31, 2013 board meeting, grant commitment schedule,
minimum distribution calculation and other supporting material for the agenda items.

The meeting on October 23, 2013 will start at 8:00 a.m. in the Executive Board Room of the
hotel.

The investment book will be sent separately.

Reservations have been made at Tucson Marriott University Park. Following are room

confirmation numbers:

Dr. J. Lee Dockery 82600909
Dr. Michael Dockery 82600909
Dr. Gene Ryerson 82601155
Dr. Robert Wah 82601294
Mr. Hank Raattama 82601436

I look forward to seeing everyone in Tucson!
MC/nd
cc: Mike Hill

Enclosures




Master Schedule and ltinerary
For
NicKnight Brain Research Foundation Site Visit
Evelyn F. McKnight Brain Institute at the University of Arizona
October 22 — October 24, 2013

Afternoon Trustee’s arrive - limo transport to hotel, Tucson Marriott University Park, 880 East 2™ Street,
520-792-4100. (Driver will have a sign with your name as you come down the stairs at baggage
claim — contact George at 520-702-1240 in case of emergency or delays)

Dr. Lee Dockery 12:00pm — Delta Flight #825
Dr. Michael Dockery 3:57pm — U.S. Airways Flight #2935
Dr. Gene Ryerson 12:00pm — Delta Flight #825
Dr. Robert Wah
Ms. Melanie Cianciotto 11:00am - American Airlines Flight #1055
Mr. Hank Raattama 3:25pm - American Airlines Flight #1404
5:30pm Van transport to Carol Barnes residence (meet in front of Marriott)
6:00pm Appetizers
6:30pm Working Dinner
~ 7:30pm Van transport to Marriott

8:00am — 12:00pm Trustee Board Meeting (Executive Board Room, Marriott Hotel; separate agenda attached)

12:45pm Van transport to Keating (meet in front of Marriott)
1:00pm Registration, Keating Lobby
1:15pm — 5:00pm Scientific Program, Keating 103

5:00pm — 7:00pm Reception, Keating Lobby
7:00pm Van transport to Marriott Hotel (meet van in lot west of Keating)

Thursday, October 24, 2013

8:45am Van transport to “Swede” Johnson Building (meet in front of Marriott)

9:00am — 10:00am Trustees meet with University of Arizona, UA Foundation and UA EMBI Administration (“Swede”
Johnson Building, room 303)
Andrew Comrie, Ph.D., Provost
Jennifer Barton, Ph.D., Interim VP for Research
Jim Moore, President, UA Foundation
Jenny Flynn, Associate Vice President, Gift Center, UA Foundation
Carol Barnes, Ph.D., Director, UA EMBI

10:00am - 11:00am  Trustees meet with Carol Barnes ("Swede” Johnson Building, room 303)

10:30am Airport transport for Dr. M. Dockery (US Airways 2883 @ 12.05)
11:00am Transport to airport or to hotel for check-out
Airport. Dr. Ryerson (Delta 2420 @ 12:50pm) Hotel: Ms. Cianciotio
Airport: Dr. L. Dockery (Delta 2420 @ 12:50pm) Mr. Raattama
11:45am Limo transport from hotel to airport
Ms. Melanie Cianciotto {American Airlines 1295 @ 1:20pm)
Mr. Hank Raattama (American Airlines 1295 @ 1:20pm)

(@ Evelyn F. MoKnight
e {_/,/ Brain Institule




Wednesday, October 23, 2013

8:00 a.m. — 8:30 a.m.

MCKNIGHT BRAIN RESEARCH FOUNDATION

Trustees’ Meeting
October 23,2013

Executive Board Room
Tueson Marriott University Park
880 East 2" Street
Tucson, AZ

AGENDA

Melanie Cianciotto

12:00 p.m.

12:30 p.m.

1. Breakfast/ Call to Order
2. Approval of Minutes from Board Meeting
July 31,2013
3. Investment Review
4. Minimum Distribution Calculation
5. Travel Award Program Update
Bio-informatics Core
6. Institute of Medicine (IOM) Study
7. Research Partnership in Cognitive Aging
8. University of Arizona EMBI Business Plan
9. University of Miami Update
10. Electronic Records
11.  Upcoming Dates & Events
% Society for Neuroscience
MBRF Poster Session/Reception
November 10, 2013
San Diego, CA
% Trustee’s Meeting
February 12, 2014
Orlando, FL
< Seventh Inter-Institutional Meeting
April 23-25, 2014
University of Florida
Gainesville, FL
Lunch

Adjournment

Melanie Cianciotto

Michael Hill

Melanie Cianciotto



MINUTES
MCKNIGHT BRAIN RESEARCH FOUNDATION
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
July 31, 2013

The Trustee’s meeting of the McKnight Brain Research Foundation (MBRF) was called to order
at 8:15 a.m. on July 31, in Orlando, FL in the Seminole Room of the Park Building.

The following members were present:

Dr. J. Lee Dockery, Trustee '

Dr. Michael Dockery, Trustee

Dr. Nina Ellenbogen Raim, Trustee

Dr. Gene G. Ryerson, Trustee

Dr. Robert M. Wah, Trustee

Ms. Melanie Cianciotto, Corporate Trustee

SunTrust Bank Institutional Investment Solutions

Others attending:

Mr. Henry H. Raattama, Jr., Legal Counsel -

Mr. Michael Hill, Managing Director, SunTrust Institutional Investment Solutions (via

conference call)

Ms. Shelly Simpson, Senior Portfolio Specialist, SunTrust Banks, Inc. (via conference call)

1. Minutes
The minutes of the April 24, 2013 meeting of the McKnight Brain Research Foundation were
reviewed. The minutes were approved as presented (Attachment 1).

Action Item 1: The trustees approved the minutes of the April 24, 2013 meeting as
presented (Attachment 1).

2. Minimum Distribution Calculation
The trustees reviewed the projected minimum distribution calculation for mformatuon
(Attachment 2).

Action Item 2: The trustees reviewed the projected minimum distribution
calculation for information (Attachment 2).

3. Travel Award Program
The trustees reviewed the travel award program budget for information (Attachment 3).

Action Item 3: The trustees reviewed the travel award program budget for
information.

1
MBRF July 31, 2013

1* Draft August 5, 2013
2" Draft August 12, 2013



8. Electronic Records
Ms. Cianciotto provided the trustees with an update on what content has been uploaded to the
secure website hosted by Foundation Center.

9. Upcoming Dates & Events

A. October 2013 Board of Trustees Meeting
The trustees have agreed to hold the October 2013 meeting of the MBRF in Arizona. The
trustees will arrive the morning of October 22, 2013 and meet from 12:00 noon — 5:00 p.m.

The scientific program will be held October 23 — 24, 2013 adjourning at noon on October 24,
2013.

B. Society for Neuroscience 2013 McKnight Poster Session
The poster/reception is an MBRF sponsored and hosted event for graduate students and
faculty who will be attending the meeting from each of the four institutions to which the MBRF
provides funding. The reception will feature scientific poster displays from each of the four
McKnight Brain Institutes. The trustees are invited to attend the event, which will be held on
Sunday, November 10, 2013 at a SfN assigned hotel in San Diego, CA.

C. February 2014 Board of Trustees Meeting
The trustees have agreed to hold the February 2014 meeting of the MBRF in Orlando. The
trustees will arrive the evening of February 11, 2014. The trustees meeting will be held
February 12, 2014 beginning at 8:00 a.m. with breakfast in order to facilitate adjourning at
3:00 p.m. No social activities will be planned on the evening of the arrival.

D. Seventh Inter-Institutional Meeting
The seventh annual McKnight Brain Research Foundation Inter-Institutional Meeting will be
hosted by the Evelyn F. McKnight Brain Institute at the University of Florida April 23 — 25,
2014, The trustees will arrive the morning of April 23, 2014 and meet in the afternoon
beginning at 12:00 noon. The Inter-Institutional meeting will begin with a reception on the
evening of April 23, 2014 followed by the scientific sessions on April 24-25, adjourning at noon
on April 25, 2014.

10. Evelyn F. McKnight Brain Institutes: Inter-Institutional Bioinformatics Core
The trustees discussed the proposal to establish an Inter-Institutional Biocinformatics Core

between the four McKnight Brain Institutes (Attachment 8). After discussion, the trustees
approved a block grant in the amount of $300,000 annually for two years with the
requirement for the submission of annual reports at the end of each year. An Inter-
Institutional Bioinformatics Account will be established. The senior scientists will be required
to notify the corporate trustee of the MBRF who among them has the authority to receive
funds to be disbursed from the Inter-Institutional Bioinformatics Account. In addition, the
epigenetics working group will be required to submit a written project proposal with a business
plan identifying how the funds will be spent, by and through, each McKnight Brain Institute.

3
MBREF July 31, 2013

1* Draft August 5, 2013
2™ Draft August 12, 2013



After review and discussion, a motion was made to accept the McKnight proposed mix as
presented in the asset allocation study with a targeted return of 7.11%. The motion passed
unanimously. The corporate trustee in consultation with Mr. Hill and legal counsel
recommended that Appendix A and B of the Investment Policy Statement be revised to be
compatible with the recommendations and the current 2.7% inflation rate. The motion passed
unanimously. A third motion was made to date the amendments to the Investment Policy
Statement as of July 31, 2013. The motion passed unanimously.

Action Item 10: The trustees approved the Efficient Frontier Analysis with the mix

of asset classes to produce and anticipated yield of 7.11%.

Action Item 11: The corporate trustee in consultation with Mr. Hill and legal
counsel recommended that Appendix A and B of the Investment Policy Statement
be revised to be compatible with the recommendations and the current 2.7%
inflation rate.

Action Item 12: The trustees approved the amendments to the Investment Policy
Statement to be dated July 31, 2013.

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 12:25 p.m.

Summary of Action Items:

Respectfully Submitted,

Melanie A. Cianciotto
SunTrust Bank, Corporate Trustee

MBREF July 31, 2013
1¥ Draft August 5, 2013
2" Draft August 12, 2013



McKnight Brain Research Foundation

Historical Gifts
Fiscal years 2000 - 2018

University of Alabama | University of Arizona | University of Florida University of Miami FNIH
$5,000,000
(5/15/2004) $5,000,000 $5,000,000
Commitments f:(;/‘:‘g’/‘:;z‘s’)o 00,000 $15,000,000 $5,000,000 g” g;zo‘?gg)o
$6,000,000 (7/10/2008) (10/2013)
(8/3/2009)
7117199 -6/30/00 $15,000,000
7/1100--06/30/01
711101 - 06/30/02
711102 - 6/30/03
7/1103 - 6/30/04 $1,500,000
711104 - 6/30/05 $2,000,000 $875,000
7/1/05 - 6/30/06 $1,000,000 $875,000
711106 - 6/30/07 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $875,000
711107 - 6/30/08 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $875,000
7/1/08-6/30/09 $1,000,000 $1,300,000
7/1/09-6/30/10 $1,500,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
7/1110-6/30/11 $1,500,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
7/1111-6/30/12 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
7/1/12-6/30/13 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
7/1/13-6/30/14 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
7/1/14-6/30/15
7/1/15-6/30/16
7/1116-6/30/17
711/17-6/30/18
7/1/18-6/30/19
Total $12,000,000 $5,300,000 $15,000,000 $5,000,000 $5,000,000
Balance $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,000,000

* through October 8, 2013

Total Gift Payments*

$42,300,000

Remaining Balance of Commitments*

$5,000,000




McKnight Brain Research Foundation

Projected Minimum Investment Return Calculations

(As of 10/8/2013 for fiscal year ending 6/30/2014)

Average Fair Market Value

Less:
Cash held for charitable purposes (1 1/2 %)

$44,756,764.99

($671,351.47)

Net value of non-charitable use assets $44,085,413.51
Minimum Investment Return (5%) $2,204,270.68
Net Minimum Investment Return Calculation:
Minimum investment return $2,204,270.68
Less:
¥ Grant Payments ($2,000,000.00)
sub total  Qualifying Distributions ($2,535,053.79)
($330,783.11)
Excess distribution carryover $4,404,115.00
(actual for '09, "10,'11)
(estimate for '12 & '13) $812,982.00

$5,217,097.00



(4arokited 160°L12'S$ SZv'Zi9'ovs
SS20XD |E)0] POIRWISI)

. (erewpse) {(;rewinss) P ‘p 1@k

00°0% 810664 £60'585°24 0L2'v02'C% YLIOEI9-CLILIL £Pe'6.L9'vPS
(orewyss) (earewnss) A —_

’ 5 ‘ ™~ .V
00°0% 661°28v8 922'299'28 Lzo'ovi‘es ELI0SI9 CYIMIL glz'0z8'ers
00°0$ 048°179% 808'G19°2$ 8£6'€26°1% ZHI0SI9 L LILIL £6¢°'902Z°L¥$
00°0% 8.1'626°1$ Z6¥'286°cS £1£'850°2% L1/0€/9-0LILIL 126899 PYS
00°0% 990°2£8°1$ 919'68.°¢$ 055°256°1L$ 0L/0€/9-60/VIL $9¢°166'6¢$
00°0% 815°005$ ove'LL8'CS z9.'8102% 60/0€/9-80/1iL ¥60°L¥v'6eS
00°0$ 6£6°Z62$ 8050} 12$ 6952182 80/0€/9 -L0/L1L ¥8Y'eSL'yes
00'0% 195°8¥r$ 1£6°662'C$ TN 2N A L0/0€/9 - 90/L/L 1£8°282°29%

00'S%9°2$ 0% 659'9£0°2$ 800°029'Z$ 90/0£/9 - S0/1/L 69¢°LLL'55%
00°0% P0L'SLS% 6¥0°'920°¢$ She'osyes G0/0E/9 - ¥O/LIL 992'868°15$
40 03 B senohiies
00°0$ piNos am sead jsej) $0¥'599°L$ 1% drA-Tatd 3 P0/0E/9 - €0/LIL €12°298°15%
192°'992°s4
ToA0ALIED SuonnqInsiq £85'921°69% 6661 950
SO U] paINGLIISIPUL) SUORAGIREG S595%5 BUAGERD Unowy ojqepnqgLasiq 4804 Xej ST To0TCH
£10Z - 0002 sieafk eosiy
uoljeinojed uohnqusiqg Wnuiuip
UONEPUNO yoieosay uielg 1UbDIUMOH




Jesp 10} [e10]

00°000°000° TS 00°000°000°TS  00°000°000°1S 00°000°000°TS 00°000°000°TS

3{eoH JO sounynsuy

00°000°000°SS  00°000°000°TS 00°000°000°TS  00°000°000°TS 00°000°000°1$ 00°000°600°TS  00°000°000°cS  TeuocpeN oY) I0f WONBPURGC]
,m.P,e...N

UOT) BZIUBSI()

LL0Z ‘L Ainp 9L0¢g ‘I Ainp 5102 ‘I Ainp Loz ‘L Aine

souejeg 810z ‘I Ainp
peinpeyog panpayos [eJO JuRIE)

Buiujewsy  pe[npeyss  PINPsYds psinpayog

Bugesy £L0E/EE/0L
8Npeyog sjusujiwwoy iuels
uonepuno yoiessay uleig ybiuyon syl




Cianciotto.Melanie

From: J. Lee Dockery [jId0O07@cox.net]

Sent: Friday, September 27, 2013 6:40 PM

To: Carol A. Barnes

Cc: Luann Snyder; Robert Wah, MD; Gene Ryerson, MD; Michael L. Dockery, MD;

Cianciotto.Melanie; Nina Elenbogen Raim, MD, JD; Foster,Thomas C; J. David Sweatt,
Ph.D.; DAlessandro.Nicole, Henry H. Raattama, Esq.
Subject: Re: Bio-informatics Core

Thanks, Carol! 'We know you share the same goals and objectives as the trustees and will want to solve any
legal issues advance to avoid jeopardizing or compromising the outcome.

We look forward to reviewing the recommendations of the UA legal representatives regarding our expressed
concerns. '

With appreciation for your efforts and best wishes,
Lee

- Original Message

:J LéeﬂDoclﬁiem‘
Cc: Luann Snyder ; Robert Wah, MD ; Gene Ryerson, MD ; Michael L. Dockery, MD ; Melanie Cianciotto ; Nina

Elenbogen Raim, MD, JD ; Foster, Thomas C ; J. David Sweatt, Ph.D. ; Nicole D'Alessandro ; Henry H. Raattama, Esq.
Sent: Friday, September 27, 2013 9:38 AM
Subject: RE: Bio-informatics Core

Thanks for your response Lee - I will see what I can discover about this 'legal question’, and attempt to answer

it as well as I can (while at the same time, asking for your patience, as I will need to have someone help me
with the legal aspects).

I'll respond as soon as 1 believe I understand what an accurate response would be.
all my best,
Carol

Carol A. Barnes, Ph.D.

Regents' Professor, Psychology, Neurology and Neuroscience
Evelyn F. McKnight Chair for Learning and Memory in Aging
Director, Evelyn F. McKnight Brain institute

Director, ARL Division of Neural Systems, Memory and Aging
Associate Director, BIO5

Life Sciences North Building, room 355

PO Box 245115

University of Arizona

Tucson, AZ 85724-5115

From: J. Lee Dockery [jld007 @cox.net]

Sent: Friday, September 27, 2013 6:30 AM

To: Carol A. Barnes

Cc: Luann Snyder; Robert Wah, MD; Gene Ryerson, MD; Michael L. Dockery, MD; Melanie Cianciotto; Nina Elenbogen

Raim, MD, JD; Foster,Thomas C; J. David Sweatt, Ph.D.; Nicole D'Alessandro; Henry H. Raattama, Esq.
Subject: Re: Bio-informatics Core

Dear Carol,



INSTITUTE OF MEDICINE

OF THE NATIONAL ACADEMIES

Office of Finance and Administration

September 13, 2013

Ms. Melanie Cianciotto

Trustee

McKnight Brain Research Foundation
SunTrust Bank

Post Office Box 620005

Orlando, FL 32862-0005

Dear Ms. Cianciottos

Please note the enclosed final financial report for McKnight Brain Research Foundation’s sponsorship of the
Cognitive Aging: Translating Science into Prevention and Care Planning Meeting covering the period from
July 1, 2012 through March 31, 2013,

The Institute of Medicine greatly appreciates the support of the McKnight Brain Research Foundation for this
planning meeting and its ongoing support of the study, The Public Health Dimensions of Cognitive Health and
Aging.

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any questions rogarding the contents of this final
financial report.

Sincerely,

Lota Taylor
Financial Associate
Office of Finance and Administration

Enclosure: Final Financial Report for the Cognitive Aging: Translating Science into Prevention and Care
Planning Meeting

:LHE N A]‘}ON AL AC ADE M; E S 500 Fifth Street, NW, Room 807 Phone: 202 334 1498

e ; . y e e Washington; DC 20001 Fax: 202 334 2604
Advisers 1o the Hation on Stience, Engineering, and Medicine ashing E-mail: Ktaylor@nas.edu



April 15, 2008

Charles A. Sanders, M.D.

Chairman
Essablished by Foundation for the National Institutes of Health
Evelyn F. McKnight 9650 Rockville Pike
te Alleviate Memeory Loss Bethesda. MD 20814

in the Aging.

Dear Dr. Sanders,

Trussees This letter of agreement (“Agreement”) sets forth the terms under which the
Jokn G. Clarkson, M.D, McKnight Brain Research Foundation (“MBRF”) will provide funding in
Miarmi, FL support of a Research Partnership in Cognitive Aging (“Partnership”™), a

J. Lee Dockery, M.D. research grant-making program to be conducted with the National Institute on
Gainesville, FL Aging (“NIA™), through a public-private partnership coordinated by the
Michael L. Dockery, M.D. Foundation for the National Institutes of Health, Inc. (“FNIH™). The two
Charlotte. NC areas of research are described in attachment A,

Ming Ellenbogen Raim, 4.0, ] D

Miarmi Beach, FL The MBRF is aware that the purpose of FNIH, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 290b,
SunTruss Bank is to support the NIH in its mission and advance collaboration among

Orlando, FL. universities, industry, and other non-profit organizations. Collaboration

through FNIH will allow MBREF to build on the outcomes of the October
2007 Cognitive Aging Summit by committing financial resources to the
Partnership in support of peer-reviewed research grants in two of the areas
identified as an outcome of the Summit: 1) Interventions to Remediate A ge-
Related Cognitive Decline (as described in Attachment A), and 2) Neural and
Behavioral Profiles of Cognitive Function in Aging (as described in
attachment A). As outlined below and in attachments A and B, NIA wil}
establish and coordinate the grant-making program and will match the
MBRF’s contribution, investing a total of at least $5 million in grant funding
over the five-year period.

MBREF desires to support the Partnership by providing funding to FNIH as set
forth below, under the following terms.

I. Funding:

a. Payments ~ MBRF agrees to provide $5.000,000, payable
in equal annual installments over five years. MBRF’s
funding is conditioned upon NIA’s investment of at least
$5 million in grant funding in this research partnership
over the five-year period. The installments from MBRF
shall be payable on the following schedule:

Plense address all correspondence (o
Teresa Borchack - SunTyust Bank - Post Office Box 620005 - Orlando, Florida 32862-6805 - (407) 237-53987




FNIH 4'7:2008
Letter of Agreement

Cognitive Aging Summit [l: MBRF agrees to jointly support, subject to agreemient
with NIA, a second Q@gmtwe Aging Summit, to be held in 2010,

Responsible Personnel; Teresa W. Borcheck, Corporate Trustee, will represent thie
MBREF as the primary contact and can be reached at (407) 237-59070r
teresa.borcheck@suntrust.com.

Julie Wolf-Rodda, Director, Partnership Devel opment, will serve as the primary FINIH

contact-and-can-be reached at 301.402.6027 or jwolf-rodda@fnih.org.-Other relevant

FNIH contacts are:

Julie Tune, Chief Financial Officer, jtune@fnih.org, 301-435-6246

Charles Pucie, Communications Director, cpucie@fnih.org, 301-435-6248
Shawn Neil, Development Systems Manager. sneil@fnih.org, 301-594-9865

{ ] 3 ds: Should the Parmershap terminate prematurely, FNTH
shail return to MBRF all uncammﬁi@d funds or in keeping with MBRF wishes and at the
discretion of the FNIH Board of Directors, redirect them to another FNIH project or

purpose.

7. Disclosures: MBRF's support and participation in the Partnership may be disclosed at
any time by FNIH subject to prior approval of the MBRF.

8. Donor’s Business: MBRF’s funding of the Partnership is not in any way conditioned
upon any present or future business relationship between MBRF and FNIH.

Entire Agreement: The terms of this Agreement shall be construed a@c@rdmg to the
laws of the State of Maryland. This Agreement shall supersede any previous
understandings or agreement, written or otherwise. This Agreement may only be
amended by a written instrument signed by both parties.

Please indicate acceptance of this grant and certification that these funds will be used in
support of the indicated Partnership by having an authorized representative of FNIH sign the
duplicate originals of this letter. After the letter has been signed, please return one original
to MBRF for our files.

Sincerely.,

J. Lee Dockery, M.D.
Trustee. McKnight Brain Research Foundation

Please address all correspondence to Page 3of 4
Teresa Borcheck - SunTrust Bank  Post Office Box 620005 - Orlando, Floridd 32862-0005 - (407) 237-5907




ATTACHMENT A:

Research Partnership in Cognitive Aging
Grant Making Program Overview

Imtroduction

The Cognitive Aging Summit, held in Washington D.C. in October 2007, showcased the cutting

edge research into the understanding and treatment of age-related declines in cognitive function,
highlighting the importance to society of maintaining healthy brain function into older age. Two
days of scientific presentations attended by 250 participants were followed by a half day
Executive Session to further discuss scientific opportunities and needs. The primary objective of
the Executive Session was to develop recommendations for future research directions. The
recommendations can be distilled into some major themes:

e Acceleration of the development and testing of interventions

e Movement toward personalized interventions, “personalized medicine.” for maintenance
of cognitive health

o Investigation of ways to enhance adherence to interventions

o Characterization of behavioral and neural aging to create a taxonomy or “gold standard®
for both behavioral and neural profiles of successful aging. Such characterizations will
be important for designing and assessing interventions.

o Encouragement of multidisciplinary training programs

e Encouragement of multidisciplinary and interdisciplinary research teams. Idea of having
a network or consortium of investigators across university settings

e Development and/or expansion of methodologies for data analytic approaches, including
dynamic modeling

Promising areas that could be developed with most expediency and that would incorporate all
four themes include (1) preliminary research on promising interventions, particularly ones that
incorporate a multi-faceted, or combinatorial approach and (2) the development of gold
standards for behavioral and neural profiles of healthy aging. Both of these research directions
will necessitate multidisciplinary approaches in order to be successful. It is anticipated that a
secondary benefit of pursuing these research directions will be the development or expansion of
dynamic modeling and data analytic approaches in order to appropriately interpret the data
generated.

ATTACHMENT A: Page 1 of 3

Plense address all correspondence to
Teresa Borcheck - SunTrust Bank - Post Oifice Box 620005 - Orlando, Florida 32862-0005 - (407) 237-5907




challenges and gaps was the stated need to develop “gold standard” profiles for brain health arzd
cognitive function across the lifespan.

We know surprisingly little about what the longitudinal pattern of brain health and cognitive
function should look like. It seems reasonable to assume that a healthy older brain should look
like a younger brain, but existing research indicates that maintenance of brain health and
cognitive function with age may require adaptive processes that differ from those seen in
younger individuals, at least for certain cognitive domains and the brain regions that support

— them. It is not clear, however, if these changes truly represent positive compensatory
mechanisms or whether they simply reflect the aging process. We have made progress in our
goal to distinguish healthy from unhealthy cognitive aging, but the data has largely been
generated by looking at the extremes of the continuum. For example, we are not yet able to
distinguish individuals who may be developing Alzheimer’s disease but are presymptomatic
from those who will not go on to develop the disease. Postmortem examination of the brain for
diverse pathologies remains the gold standard for diagnosis of Alzheimer’s disease and other
neurodegenerative diseases. Better differentiation of these individuals while living and a better
understanding of how different pathologies and age-related changes contribute to decline in
specific behavioral functions are crucially important for rational development of therapeutics.
Further research at all relevant levels, including molecular, cellular, neuroanatomical,
physiological, and behavioral, would help define profiles that characterize healthy cognitive
aging. For example, exploitation of molecular tools using animal models to differentiate
components of cognitive processes, such as encoding, consolidation and retrieval in memory,
would allow the interrogation of where age-related changes occur. Another important goal
would be the identification of specific types of brain cells and their molecular profiles that are
vulnerable to the aging process. All of these approaches will increase our understanding of brain
aging and aid in the identification of targets for future therapeutics. Research in this area also
could lead to the development of biomarkers that could be included in a wide variety of research
projects, including large scale longitudinal studies, which would further advance our
understanding of the causes of age-related cognitive change and help guide treatment of
cognitive decline or maintenance of cognitive function with increasing age. In addition to
longitudinal approaches, studying the brain health and behavioral profiles of the oldest old who
have successfully lived past 90 without developing dementia may provide an especially useful
opportunity to test some of the theories of adaptation, compensation, and cognitive reserve.

ATTACHMENT A: Page 3 of 3

Please address ali correspondence to
Teresa Borcheck - SunTrust Bank - Post Office Box 620005 - Orlando, Florida 32862-0005 - (407) 237-5907




Attachment C, Page & of2

Attachment C
Research Partnership in Cognitive Aging

Mechanisms of Cognitive Remediation in Older Adults

The following is a summaty of the program concept, which was presented to and approved by the
National Institute on Aging Advisoty Council at its January 29-30, 2013 meeting

Overview

Although only 13% of adults over the age of 65 have Alzheimer's disease (Alzheimer's Association, 2012), the
vast majority of oldet adults will experience some deteriotation in cognitive function as they age. Following
up on recommendations generated by the 2007 Cognitive Aging Summit, in 2009, the NIA, in collaboration
with the McKnight Brain Research Foundation (MBRF) and FNIH, released two RFAs: "Interventions to
remediate age-related cognitive decline” (RFA-AG-09-009) and "Neural and Behavioral Profiles of Cognitive
Aging" (RFA-AG-09-010). The RFAs drew a strong response. The eleven awards funded from the Profiles
RFA have yielded new and exciting information about the plasticity of the aging brain. The six awards fuunded
from the Interventions RFA implemented pilot-scale randomized clinical trials that capitalized on advances in
cognitive aging interventions. Crucially, many of these trials also collected imaging and biomarker data that
would potentially allow a much closer examination of the mechanism of action of the tested intetventions.
The promise of this approach was underlined by some of the recommendations from the 2010 Cognitive
Aging Summit (Wagster et al., 2012) which pointed in particular to "increasing opportunities at the interface
of basic and clinical science to enhance the clinical trial enterprise,” "encouraging mote integrative models of
mechanisms for age-related decline/maintenance/adaptation,” and "use of a uniform set of measures of
cognition in both animal and human studies." The agenda and audio/video of the presentations ate available
at: http:/ /www.nia.nih.gov/about/events /2011 /cognitive-aging-summi-ii.

Stemming from these recommendations, the proposed initiative consists of an RFA soliciting one or possibly
two well powered intervention trials to remediate or prevent age-related cognitive decline. In particular,
investigators will be strongly encouraged to pursue therapeutic approaches that aim to dtive beneficial
plasticity of the aging brain and requite the monitoting of plastic changes thtough behavioral and biologjcal
markers.

Applicants will be required to use state-of-the-art outcome measures including behavioral and biological
markers and petform pre-/post-/maintenance structural and functional imaging. Three impottant reasons for
the use of biomarkers and imaging are (1) to investigate the mechanism of action, (2) to monitor plastic
changes in the CNS caused by the intervention, and (3) to identify subgroups of participants who differ in
theit response to the intervention. Furthermore, major trans-NIH efforts in measurement and instrument
development recently have come to fruition, yielding products including the NIH Toolbox (Gershon et al,
2010) and PROMIS (Cella et al., 2010) that promise valid, state-of-the-art measures to increase the data yield
from longitudinal studies and clinical trials. One other point that speaks to timeliness of this proposal is the
possibility that FNIH can identify substantial cofounding for this initiative that would be available in FY2014,
Overall, a far richer assortment of potential cognitive interventions and much improved insttuments and
measures to monitor cognitive maintenance or improvement, as well as improved tools to investigate their
brain subsitates ate in place.




ATTACHMENT D:
Research Partnership in Cognitive Aging

Opportunities for MBRF Involvement and Recognition

As a partner in the Project, MBRF will be involved with and acknowledged for its partnership with INIA
and the FNIH in a number of ways, including:

MBRF will be broadly and publicly acknowledged as a partner with NIA in making these grant
awards on materials, both print and electronic, in much the same way as was done with MBR F's
support of the October 2007 and 2010 Cognitive Aging Summits, and the previously funded

research grants

NIA provided MBRF with the proposed concept clearance form and invited MBRF to participate
in the January 29-30, 2013, NIA Advisory Council meeting.

MBREF Trustees or other representatives will be invited to attend and participate in the public
session at future NIA Advisory Council meetings.

When it is possible for NIA to make information about the awards public, MBRF will be notified
simultaneously with the public announcement of the award recipients.

FNIH will submit a copy of the grantee(s) research summary, which includes the abstract and
public health relevance statement, provided by the grantees to NIA, to MBRF.

Grantees will be asked to report on progress of their work; MBRF will be invited to attend these
meetings.

ATTACHMENT D: Page 1 of 1




ADDENDUM
TO THE MAY 2008 LETTER OF AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
THE FOUNDATION FOR THE NATIONAL INSTITUTES OF HEALTH, INC,
. AND
THE MCKNIGHT BRAIN RESEARCH FOUNDATION

This Addendum is effective as of the last date of signature and supplements and amends the terms of the

Letter of Agreement ("' Agreement") that was fully executed on May 6, 2008, between the Foundation for the Wational
Institutes of Health, Inc., a tax-exempt, not-for-profit Maryland corporation located at 9650 Rockville Pike, B ethesda,
MD 20814 ("FNIH") and The McKunight Bram Research Foundation (“Donor™).

The Agreement is supplemented to include the following language in addition to the Agreement's existing language:

Donor desires to extend its partnership with FNIH and the National Institutes on Aging (NIA) for the Research
Partnership in Cognitive Aging for an additional five years, to support a new research initiative tentatively
entitled, "Mechanisms of Cognitive Remediation in Older Adults" ("Program").

The goal of the Program (as described in Attachment C) is to develop biological and behavioral intentions for
maintaining and enhancing cognitive function that are based on evidence of their ability to harness beneficial
plastic changes in the aging brain, including intervention trials to remediate or prevent age- related decline.

The research areas to be funded through the Program are well-powered intervention trials to remediate or prevent
age-related cognitive decline. Of particular interest are therapeutic approaches that aim to drive beneficial
plasticity of the aging brain and require investigators to monitor plastic changes through behavioral and biological
markers. The funded studies will use behavioral and biological markers and structural and functional imaging to
investigate the mechanism of action, monitor plastic changes in the central nervous system caused by the
intervention, and identify subgroups of participants who differ in their response to the intervention. Designed to
advance the understanding of normal cognition and brain health m aging, this initiative will help to pave the way
for development of definitive therapeutics that could be implemented in older adults. As ouilined below and in
Attachments C and D, the NIA will establish and coordinate the grant making program and will match the
Donor’s contribution, investing a total of at least $5 million in grant funds over the five year period

Subject to the terms of the Agreement, Donor will provide funding to FNIH to support the Program as set forth
below, under the following terms:

a) Payments —Donor agrees to provide $5,000,000, payable in equal annual installments over five years
according to the following schedule. The Donor’s funding is conditioned upon NIA’s investment of at least
$5 million in grant funding in the research partnership over the five year period. Payment 1 is guaranteed.
Subsequent payments will be forthcoming unless, no later than January 1 of the funding year, Donor advises

" FNIH that it has elected not to continue such funding:
Payment 1: $1,000,000 due on or before July 1, 2014
Payment 2: $1,000,000 due on or before July 1, 2015
Payment 3: $1,000,000 due on or before July 1, 2016
Payment 4: $1,000,000 due on or before July 1, 2017
Payment 5: $1,000,000 due on or before July 1, 2018

b) Use of funds - FNIH shall use the funding provided by Donor solely for the purpose of funding the
Partnership, except that the FNIH shall retain a fee of five percent (5%) of each payment, plus direct costs
incurred for performing its services in connection with the Project.

Addendum to May 2008 Agreement,
FNIH-MBRF, Page 1




Approved and Accepted for the McKnight Brain Research Foundation

»

J. Lee Dockery, M.D. Date
Trustee, McKnight Brain Research Foundation

—Michael - Dockery, M:D: Date
Trustee, McKnight Brain Research Foundation

Nina Ellenbogen Raim, M.D., J.D. Date
Trustee, McKnight Brain Research Foundation

Gene G. Ryerson, M.D. Date
Trustee, McKnight Brain Research Foundation

Robert M. Wah, M.D. . Date
Trustee, McKnight Brain Research Foundation

Melanie A. Cianciotto Date
Corporate Trustee, McKnight Brain Research Foundation

Approved and Accepted for the Foundation for the National Institutes of Health, Inc.

Charles A. Sanders, M.D. Date
Chairman




Cianciotto.Melanie

From: Carol A. Barnes [carol@nsma.arizona.edu]

Sent: Monday, August 05, 2013 10:26 PM
To: J. Lee Dockery
Ce: Cianciotto.Melanie; Nina Ellenbogen Raim, MD,JD; Mike Dockery; Gene Ryerson, MD;

Robert Wah, MD; DAlessandro.Nicole; Henry H. Raattama, Esq.; Dr. Leslie Tolbert;
barton@email.arizona.edu; comrie@email.arizona.edu; Luann Snyder
Subject: RE: Evelyn F. McKnight Brain Institute Institute, University of Arizona

Lee,
Thanks so much for sending me the summary of the Trustees review of my proposal, and for scheduling a site

—visit at the University of Arizona in October. Tlook forward to-working with-you to plan the timing-and the ———

agenda for your visit to facilitate your decision on moving forward with plans for planning a permanent
endowment. I have been away all day today in Phoenix to review a progam at the Barrow Neurological
Institute, and I hope to respond in more detail in the next days, but [ want to thank you for the news of your
review, and to your upcoming visit.

all my best,
Carol

Carol A. Barnes, Ph.D.

Regents' Professor, Psychology, Neurology and Neuroscience
Evelyn F. MéKnight Chair for Learning and Memory in Aging
Director, Evelyn F. McKnight Brain Institute

Director, ARL Division of Neural Systems, Memory and Aging
Associate Director, BIO5

Life Sciences North Building, room 355

PO Box 245115

University of Arizona

Tucson, AZ 85724-5115

From: J. Lee Dockery [jld007@cox.net]

Sent: Monday, August 05, 2013 6:46 AM

To: Carol A. Barnes

Cc: Melanie Cianciotto; Nina Ellenbogen Raim, MD,JD; Mike Dockery; Gene Ryerson, MD; Robert Wah, MD; Nicole
D'Alessandro; Henry H. Raattama, Esq.; Dr. Leslie Tolbert; barton@email.arizona.edy; comrie@email.arizona.edu; Luann
Snyder

Subject: Evelyn F. McKnight Brain Institute Institute, University of Arizona

Dear Carol,



y THE UNIVERSITY Evelyn F. McKnight Brain Institute Life Sciences North Building

Arizona Research Laboratories P.O. Box 245115
OF ARIZONA. Tucson, AZ 85724-5115

Tel: (520) 626-2312
Fax: (520) 626-2618

To: Trustees
McKnight Brain Research Foundation

From: Carol A. Barnes, Ph. D
Director, Evelyn F. McKni tBram Institute

University of Arizona, Tucson

Date: July 18, 2013

University of Arizona, Evelyn F. McKnight Brain Institute

Executive Summary

The Evelyn F. McKnight Brain Institute (EMBI) at the University of Arizona in Tucson is
proud to be one of four McKnight Institutes devoted to Evelyn McKnight's vision of
understanding and alleviating age-related memory loss. With the critical investment of
the McKnight Brain Research Foundation (MBRF), the hard work of our EMBI
colleagues and others in the field, the significant scientific progress we have made here
in Tucson, and the momentum around the federal government’'s new BRAIN Initiative,
the Tucson EMBI is poised to take our efforts to the next level of innovation and
discovery. Building on previous investments of time and research, we will focus on
three critical goals (novel cognitive tests, work on basic neural mechanisms, and efforts
towards preclinical treatment strategies). To meet these shared goals, we respectfully
request a Permanent Endowment to be held at the University of Arizona Foundation for
the benefit of the Tucson EMBI in the amount of $5M with a goal of matching the
MBRF’s investment with additional endowed funds to create a $10M McKnight Brain
Institute Endowment. The McKnight Brain Institute Endowment will create a high-level
scientific engine of discovery that we believe is a fitting legacy to Mrs. McKnight's vision
of optimizing cognition for life.

Background to the Present Document
To introduce the present document, | would like to review a series of events that
preceded the current submission.

April 13, 2012: At the private meeting with Barnes at the 5" Inter-institutional meeting
in Tucson, she outlined her vision for the Tucson EMBI for the next 5 years. The
Trustees of the MBRF indicated that a business plan to support these goals would
be considered.

July 23, 2012: The Tucson EMBI submitted a business plan to the MBRF proposing an
additional gift.

September 3, 2012: The Trustees of the MBRF requested additional information for
clarification.

October 22, 2012: The Tucson EMBI submitted the additional information requested
by the MBRF.

January 31, 2013: The VPR of the University of Arizona (UA) Dr. Leslie Tolbert,
President of the UA Foundation Mr. James Moore, and Director of the EMBI Tucson

@ Evel ygﬁ F. McKnight
Brain Institute



Dr. Carol Barnes met with MBRF Trustees Dr. Lee Dockery and Dr. Gene Ryerson
in Gainesville concerning the gift agreement.

March 1, 2013: MBRF Trustees invited the University of Arizona to submit a proposal
to establish an Endowment Fund within the EMBI in Tucson.

April 16, 2013: Dr. Tolbert accepted the invitation to submit a proposal to the MBRF
with a target date of July 15, 2013.

July 1, 2013: Dr. Jennifer Barton was named Interim Vice President for Research at
the University of Arizona.

—July 18, 2013: The Tucson EMBI submitted a proposal to establish the McKnight Brain
Institute Endowment (the present document).

Scientific Progress

Over the past several years the Tucson EMBI has made strong progress in the
development of the tools necessary to better understand the dynamic changes in
cellular circuits, molecular circuits and genetic markers that underlie memory loss in
aging — in rats, in monkeys and in humans. This has been documented in the progress
reports generated by this Institute, which have been reviewed annually by the Trustees
of the MBRF. The present request is to build on and to continue to expand these
achievements through efforts within the EMBI in Tucson and through collaborative
interactions with the other McKnight Brain Institutes.

Notable examples of accomplishments over the past few years include the creation of
the Tucson Evelyn F. McKnight Memory and Cognitive Assessment Clinic designed for
cognitive testing of normal aged individuals, and recruitment of two faculty: Gene
Alexander, who is an expert in human brain imaging and analytic methods as applied to
brain aging and cognition; Stephen Cowen, who is an expert in high-density recording
technologies in animal models of aging cognition. Within this time frame, Tucson EMBI
members organized a symposium and published a series of papers (in an entire issue
of the journal Hippocampus) on a relatively understudied region of the temporal lobe,
called the perirhinal cortex. Together, these manuscripts revealed the distinct
contribution the perirhinal cortex makes to cognition, how this structure is impacted by
aging, and how it contributes significantly to age-related changes observed in episodic
memory during normal aging across species (rat, monkey and human). Barnes also
organized a Cognitive Test Battery working group, with participants from all four
McKnight Institutes. Several meetings of this group were supported by the MBRF
Travel Award Program. State-of-the-art human and animal cognitive tests sensitive to
normal aging were evaluated, new testing methods proposed, and these discussions
resulted in a 7 paper volume of the journal Frontiers in Aging Neuroscience. We believe
this effort is already having an important impact in setting standards for defining the
cognitive domains and test instruments that will be most powerful for detecting age-
related change, and most sensitive for the assessment of treatment strategies
developed to reduce cognitive decline in aging.

The overall goal for all McKnight Brain Institutes, of course, is to develop a deeper
understanding of the neural basis of memory so that we can facilitate the translation of
our work into treatments that alleviate age-related memory loss. | believe that the
Tucson EMBI has contributed substantively to fundamental discoveries in the field of
brain aging and memory during the period of the quasi-endowment provided by the

2



original Gift from the MBRF. As stated in Dr. Leslie Tolbert’'s April 16, 2013 letter to the
Trustees, and as affirmed by the new Vice President for Research Dr. Jennifer Barton,

~ and the Provost, Dr. Andrew Comrie, the University of Arizona is ready to take up this
fund raising challenge in order to meet our mutual vision for the future of the Arizona
EMBI (see letter at the end of this document). This involves the UA seeking to match
the MBRF’s $5M gift to the McKnight Brain Institute Endowment to sustain this Institute
in perpetuity, as well as to use this gift to leverage grant awards and to stimulate donor
interest.

Ongoing Institute Projects
The original MBRF gift allowed the Tucson EMBI to acquire a precious population of
young and old bonnet macaques. Over the period of the original gift, we have
established this colony and have conducted extensive behavioral, imaging and sensory
experiments with these animals. Within the upcoming 4 years, high-density multi-
neuron recordings will be instituted and completed. The large, integrated set of aging
experiments conducted in this population of animals has required substantial support
from Institute funds, as originally approved by the Trustees of the MBRF. These
experiments are unique — no one has a colony like this of young and old primates with
extensive cognitive and sensory testing, MRI analyses, genetic samples, and now
ensemble electrophysiological recordings. As we finish these high-density recordings,
the animals’ brains will be removed and the entire brain will be serial sectioned. This
enables histological reconstruction of the electrode tracks and an atlas to be made for
each animal. The brain tissue collected also provides the opportunity to conduct
molecular and biochemical experiments on all animals. This will allow targeted brain
regions to be examined in relation to various domains of cognitive competence. These
data are simply groundbreaking — and are certainly a major strength of this Institute.

The other main stated goal of the Institute has been to develop novel single cell imaging
methods for detecting the participating elements of circuits responsible for
instantaneous behavioral experience. As we have documented in our progress reports,
manuscripts describing our new approach for analyzing these circuits across the brain
have been published, and we continue to make inroads into the next levels of
automation for the “catFISH” imaging method for whole brain network analysis. We are
also excited about incorporating the conceptual basis of the catFISH method into a new
brain clarification technique, which was developed by a colleague at Stanford (the
CLARITY method), published in April this year. We are working to improve the
CLARITY method here in Tucson in the hope that this will give us even faster access to
whole brain reconstruction. The Tucson EMBI is certainly in a strong position to
compete for funds for these kinds of efforts from the new B.R.A.I.N. initiative announced
by President Obama. This Institute has been working towards understanding behavior-
driven circuits across the brain for some years, both by using our multi-electrode arrays
in awake, behaving animals (hyperdrives and tetrode probes), and by implementing our
single cell imaging methods that can identify the individual cells and circuits involved in
unique behavioral experiences (catFISH).

Advancing the Field of the Biology of Cognitive Aging

As previously discussed with the Trustees, the Director of the Tucson EMBI believes

that there are at least three layers of innovation and discovery necessary to move the
field forward. The first is the development of behavioral tools sensitive to age-related

3



change and the function of different memory systems in the brain. The second is the
development of sensitive biological tools to test the function of individual neural

systems. We are now confident that different brain regions “age at different rates”,
which is reflected in unique cognitive aging trajectories. Thus, to be effective, the final
step must involve tailoring treatment strategies to be selective to the pattern of brain
and cognitive change that occurs in individual older adults. The McKnight Brain Institute
Endowment will allow the Tucson EMBI to contribute to the next breakthroughs in
alleviating age-related memory impairment through its scientific contributions in the
following areas:

e work on development and validation of cognitive tests sensitive to different neural
systems — tests sensitive to selective cognitive domains are fundamental for
evaluation of effective treatment approaches; :

e work on basic neural mechanisms of memory across species and across the
brain, which allow in depth biological analysis relevant for application to human
cognitive processes;

e work on preclinical treatment strategies for optimizing cognition, with initial tests
focusing on nonhuman models, transitioning to tests in humans as swiftly as
possible.

Finally, in the next years the Director of the Tucson EMBI will continue to work to
maintain and strengthen our inter-institutional collaborations so that the productivity
among us continues to build. This will contribute substantively to realizing our collective
goals to develop methods to treat and optimize the functional status of the 86% of those
individuals over 70 years of age who are not destined to incur a dementing iliness.
Moreover, there are multiple long-range benefits of establishing the McKnight Brain
Institute Endowment proposed for the EMBI in Arizona. Among these include a stream
of revenue that can be used to generate preliminary data to obtain additional grants.
The EMBI in Tucson will-also continue to participate in activities at the University that
promote translational faculty with interests in the aging brain. The previous University
Administration gave the BIO5 Institute the mandate to lead recruitment efforts for such
individuals, which has resulted in the hiring of two translational neuroscientists (with
MDs) who have research interests in aging and are faculty affiliates of the Tucson EMBI
(Dr. Latlitha Madahavan and Dr. Anita Koshy). With the full support of our current UA
President, Dr. Hart, Barnes heads an ongoing search committee, who has identified
another promising Neuroscience/ Neurology candidate that we are negotiating with
currently (Dr. Keith Vossel). Taken together, all these factors should provide a solid
foundation for carrying this Institute and the McKnight legacy well into the future.
Moreover, if we are able to stimulate donor excitement through the receipt of an
additional gift from the MBREF, it may be possible to grow the McKnight Brain Institute
Endowment even further.

The Director of the Tucson EMBI is grateful for the opportunity that the Trustees of the
MBRF have afforded in considering this proposal, and looks forward to the continuation
of our partnership in translating our basic discoveries into effective treatments for
cognitive dysfunction in normal aging.



Projections / lllustrations of the
McKnight Brain Institute Endowment
University of Arizona Foundation for the benefit of the
University of Arizona Evelyn F. McKnight Brain Institute

6.5% Total Return

yri yr2 yr3 yré yr5 yré yr7 yr8 yro yr 10
2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 201712018 2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 - 2022/2023 202312024
Permanent Endowment
Beginning Balance $0 $1,903,500  $3,830,794  $5,782,179 $7,757,956  $9,758,430 $9,880,411  $10,003,916 $10,128,965 $10,255,577
McKnight Contribution $1,000,000 $1,000,000  $1,000,000  $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Match Contribution $1,000,000 $1,600,000- - $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1.000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $OF—
6% University Development Fund fee -$120,000 -$120,000 -$120,000 -$120,000 -$120,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Balance after Gift / Match $1,880,000 $3,783,500 $5,710,794 $7,662,179 $9,637,956 $9,758,430 $9,880,411 $10,003,916 $10,128,965 $10,255,577
Net Projected Investment Growth (5:25%)* $98,700 $198,634 $209,817 $402,264 $505,993 $512,318 $518,722 $525,206 $531,771 $538,418
Distributions to the Institute (4%) -$75,200 -$161,340 -$228,432 -$306,487 -$385,518 -$390,337 -$395,216 -$400,157 -$405,159 -$410,223
Year End Balance $1,903,500 $3,830,794  $5,782,179  $7,757,956 $9,758,430 $9,880,411 $10,003,916  $10,128,965 $10,255,577 $10,383,772
5.25% Total Return
yri yr2 yr.3 yréd yr 5 yré yr7 yr8 yrg yr 10
2014/2015 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2018 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024
Permanent Endowment

Beginning Balance $0 $1,880,000  $3,760,000  $5,640,000 $7,520,000 $9,400,000 $9,400,000  $9,400,000  $9,400,000 $9,400,000
McKnight Contribution $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Match Contribution $1,000,000 $1,000,000  $1,000,000  $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
6% University Development Fund fee -$120,000 -$120,000 -$120,000 -$120,000 -$120,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Balance after Gift / Match $1,880,000 $3,760,000  $5,640,000  $7,520,000 $9,400,000 $9,400,000 $9,400,000  $9,400,000  $9,400,000 $9,400,000
Net Projected Investment Growth (4%)* $75,200 $150,400 $225,600 $300,800 $376,000 $376,000 $376,000 $376,000 $376,000 $376,000
Distributions o the Institute (4%) -$75,200 -$150,400 -$225,600 -$300,800 -$376,000 -$376,000 -$376,000 -$376,000 -$376,000 -$376,000|
Year End Balance $1,880,000 $3,760,000  $5,640,000  $7,520,000 $9,400,000 $9,400,000 $9,400,000  $9,400,000  $9,400,000 $9,400,000

Projections / llustrations are not a statement of nor a guarantee of future performance. Endowment funds bear investment market risks. Actual performance may be significantly less than

projected/illustrated.

*Net projected investment growth reflected is after reduction for annual endowment cost recovery fee of 1.25%.

The illustration above outlines some possible scenarios (considering two different
potential rates of return) for the long-term earnings and long-term research funding

available to the UA EMBI with the establishment of this Permanent Endowment, during -

the 5 years of the Gift and Match contributions, and five years beyond. The distribution
to the Institute under these conditions ranges from ~$75,000 per year in the first year, to
~$400,000/year in the 10" year.




o

1401 E. Uni ity Blvd,
THE UNIVERSITY PO B 3100ae P
. OF ARIZONA ‘ Tucson, AZ 857210066
(520) 621-1856

July 17, 2013

Trustees

McKnight Brain Research Foundation
P.0. Box 620005

Orlando, FL 32862-0005

Dear Trustees:

It is with great pleasure that we write in support of Dr. Carol Barnes’s proposal to establish a permanent
endowment for the University of Arizona Evelyn F. McKnight Brain Institute. As you are keenly aware,
Evelyn F. McKnight's interest in advancing our understanding of normal cognitive aging was prescient.
Through the vision and strategic investments of thought leaders like the McKnight Brain Research
Foundation, and in the context of tremendous scientific interest and advancements over the last decade,
we are on the brink of a revolution in brain science.

As President Obama recently stated in his call for a new BRAIN Initiative in the “grand challenge” tradition
of the Human Genome Project, “[T]here's this enormous mystery waiting to be unlocked, and the BRAIN
Initiative will change that by giving scientists the tools they need to get a dynamic picture of the brain in
action, and better understand how we think and how we learn and how we remember. And that
knowledge could be - will be - transformative.”

The University of Arizona is extremely grateful for the McKnight Brain Research Foundation’s long history of
investment in Dr. Barnes’s work, which lines up squarely with the goals of the BRAIN Initiative. Based on
our campus here in Tucson, the Evelyn F. McKnight Brain Institute has served as a catalyst for
interdisciplinary research efforts on normal brain aging and memory across Arizona and well beyond, with
numerous important discoveries, publications and grants generated from its affiliated faculty.

The University of Arizona shares the McKnight Brain Research Foundation’s faith in Dr. Barnes and the
program she has created. That faith has taken the concrete form of strategic investments in the Institute
over the years. For example, in 2006, the University of Arizona made a commitment to allocate the 3™ floor
of the Life Sciences North Building (23,531 GSF) for occupancy by faculty of the newly established Evelyn F.
McKnight Brain Institute. The current market value for rental of this space is $494,000/year with annual
maintenance costs of $143,000/year.

Over the past 7 years, the University has maintained that commitment with sole occupancy on the floor by
McKnight Affiliated faculty (Barnes, Cowen, Fuglevand, Gothard, Hay, Madhavan, Restifo). Additionally, the
University of Arizona administration strongly supports the ongoing search for an additional neuroscience
clinical translational faculty line (committee chaired by Barnes), who will occupy the remaining office and
laboratory space in the UA Evelyn F. McKnight Brain Institute. The faculty residing in the UA EMBI space
have multiple collaborations in work related to memory and aging and provide an ideal environment for
both scientific interactions as well as training up and coming scientists in the field of memory and aging.
Over the past several years, the University of Arizona has also invested over $5 million dollars in
recruitment packages for new faculty affiliated with the UA EMBI (Alexander, Cowen, Madhavan, Koshy),
and we have earmarked over $2 million for the current neuroscience clinical translational recruitment.




L1 3

Additionally, we have a continued commitment of $930,000 annually to support the faculty lines for Barnes
and the faculty recruits.

We want you to know that the University of Arizona is committed to facilitating the continued growth and
development of the Evelyn F. McKnight Brain Institute in Tucson. Thank you for your willingness to
consider a proposal for an additional gift to the Institute to strengthen the legacy of Evelyn F. McKnight.
We are delighted to champion the efforts to match the proposed additional gift.

- With a shared passion, our two organizations have moved forward on this grand challenge long before the

recent national call. We believe our partnership has the potential to have a transformative impact on the
field of normal cognitive aging, with the ultimate goal of maximizing cognition across the entire human
lifespan. We look forward to working together to achieve these important goals.

L

Andrew C. Comrie, Ph.D. Jennifer Barton, Ph.D.
Senior Vice President for Academic Affairs & Provost Interim Vice President for Research

Sincerely,

ACC/am



To: ‘Trustees,
Mcnght Brain Researoh Foundataon (MBRF)
From: Carol A Barnes, Ph.D.
Director; Evelyn F. McKnight Brain Institute (EMBt)
University of Arizona, Tucson
Date: =~ July 28, 2012
Re:  Additional Funding Allotment for EMB! Tucson
.5~page Business Ptan Summary

Screntlﬂc Progress, Evetyn F. Mcnght Bram lnstrtute, Umversrty of Arlzona

Over the past several years the Tucson EMBI has made strong progress in the development of
- the tools necessary to better understand the dynamic changes in cellular circuits, molecular -
circuits and genetic markers that underlie memory loss in aging —in rats, in monkeys and in .
humans. This has been documented in the progress reports generated by this Institute. These
reports have been reviewed annually by the Trustees of the MBRF. The present request is to
build on and expand these achievements and to implement additional avenuss of investigation.
I outlined these ideas briefly at our private discussion at the fifth Inter-institutional Meeting held
in Tucson this past April. At that time, the Trustees indicated that a business plan to support
these goals would be considered, which has encouraged me to devetop my vision further, and
to provide concrete estrmates of the fundmg that woutd be requrred to generate the desrred
dehverabtes :

Why Might the Trustees Constder an Addttlonal Request from EMBt Tucson? '
Among the examples that | might offer as evidence that this may be a productive mvestment |
choose two to discuss here. The overarching goal of the MBRF -and of each of its Institutes is to
understand why memory changes across the lifespan —even in the highest functioning
individuals — and to understand its biological basis well enough to devise ways to optimize it. A
strength of the Tucson EMBI is that its Director has been interested in this very topic for ~ 40
years has followed the field of gerontotcgy broadfy (and with great interest) over this time
penod and has been active in all levels of review in the area of the biology of aging coghnition,
from Study Section member to member of NIA’s Council: This has provrded ample exposure to
avenues of investigation in the field that have been fruitful, those that have not, and those that -
are exciting, but unlikely to be funded (because of some risk) by past and certamiy current
federal agency review panels. Another pertinent observation about the Dlrector of the Tucson
EMBI is that she (for reasons 1 cannot explain) is rather effective at getting people to work
together towards common goals that result in drssemmatton of the’ targeted objectrves “Two
examples of this can be given from 2012. The first is the 7-manuscript issue that is almost
complete for publication in Frontiers in Aging Neuroscience that arose out of the MBRF- -
supported Cogmttve Test Battery working group meetings in 2011. The second.is the 12-
manuscript, entire volume of the joumat Hlppocampus on the temporal lobe- regton known as
“perirhinal cortex”. This volume will be ‘published in time for the Neuroscience meetmg this year,
and provides data from humans, monkeys and rats suggesting a similar role across species for
this structure in cognition. Several of these papers demonstrate the neural vutnerabrhty and
cognitive consequences of changes in the penrhmat cortex durmg aging in animals, mctudmg



innovating at all levels of analysis, so that tests (both neural and behavxora!) can be rapidly
adjusted and mproved This flexibility in basic scientific strategy will facilitate identification of
those cognitive modrﬁcatlon approaches that are not effectlve enabhng usto focus on and
develop only the most promising strategaes

What types of prqects could be supported w:th an additional mvestment in EMB!

~ Tucson?

~ Beginning with the admission that none of us are pnveleged in advance to know what

~ experimental discoveries may change the course of our translational efforts, the target and -
immutable goal remains the same - to discover effective methods to optimize individual ’

r‘mmtwe -aging- tra;ectones At thls pomt intime, | see several lines-ofi investigation- that,-either— '
with a line of stable support, or a strategrc influx of support, is hkely to contribute substantlvely to
our shared goals ‘These experimental efforts fall into several categones

1) Work on basic heural mechanisms of memory across species, which have potential for
in depth biological analysss relevant for apphcatxon to human cognrtlve processes ‘

2) Work on human populatlons parhculariy those stud;ed over srgmﬂcant fime perrods that
can enable deeper understanding of the range of cogmtwe and btologicai frajectories
that emerge during the aging process; . :

3) Work on treatment strategies for optimizing cognition, with initial tests focusrng on -
nonhuman ‘models, transrtlonmg to tests in humans as swiftly as possible. .

Below | discuss the typee of exper:ments that wou!d be facmtated by an addstlonai mvestment
from the MBRF into the Tucson EMBI, that fall into each of the three categones hsted above. I,
have discussed the ideas contamed m the lists created below wrth each of the mvestlgators -
named, without reference to how the expertments mrght procure fundmg | feel confident that in
each case, mterestmg projects w:th potential for rmportant dtscovenes exist. As | do not know
the outcome of your assessment of my proposal, this is as far as | felt comfortable in allowing
the discussions with these mdlvsduals to go. But rest assured that, if given the ‘green light', and
with the. tlme frame of fund avarlabilrty known | would be able to prioritize fundmg streams over
what | imagine ‘would be a five year penod ‘Some of the work proposed is collaborative with my '
laboratory, buxldmg on or extendmg the ongoing efforts (and this is reflected in a stable fundmg
stream to me for that purpose), but much of the work proposed must be driven by the expemse v
and creativity of the colteagues that will partzcnpate The names mentioned reflect initial group

composition, which can be expanded or coniracted to mclude relevant experts as necessary to ‘
the problem at hand

Basic Blologrcal Mechamsms ' '
Sweatt/Foster/ Barnes/others from- eplgeneﬂc workmg group Each of us has a different
skill set for contrtbutmg toa deeper understandmg of the dynamrc changes in histone
modn‘rcatrons critical for optimal cognition. This is an area of great importance with respectto
therapeutrc development, and there will certainly be a need for extensive animal testing at
multiple levels. ‘The McKnight group can lead the world in this pursuit if we pool our strengths.
Coleman/ Mitchell/Trouard/Barnes: Transgenic rat models of slowly developing hyperension
that mimic human cardiovascular conditions have to date only been investigated with respect to
effects on peripheral organs. Mitchell has transferred hypertension-inducible transgenic rats to

3




Wright/Alexander/Huentelman/Coleman/Roher/Reiman: It is clear that differential aging of
the cardiovascular system can contribute to the variability in cogmtlve outcomes experienced in
aging. We have significant expert;se in cognitive testing, cardiovascular functnon neuro;magmg,
and genetic and epigenetic analysis. Working together, this team can pinpoint cardiovascular
variables (bnomarkers) that most crstioally |mpaot cognmve agmg, suggestzng therapeutic targets_

Transiational Eﬁorts ‘
Gallagher]Bames The Barnes laboratory has identified a possible eiectrophys;ologloa!
signature of behav:orai slowing with age, and Gallagher’'s company may have a compound that
can modify this neuroblologsoal change.. In the end, a combination of compounds may be most

effective, but we have begun to-explore this experimentally. f prellmmary results-look-promising
I'would like to accelerate the numbers of animals for preclinical testing studies in my lab.
Gazzaley/Arnsten: Gazzaley has developed an interesting behavioral test for humans that we
are adapting to the bonnet macaques in the lab in Tucson. Amsten has experience with
administering pharmacological agents to nonhuman primates. Working together, we will apply
newly developed cognitive tests for monkeys, similar to those used to test memory in older
humans, and will attempt to ameliorate the negative effects of interference on memory inthese
older animals with a variety of pharmacological manipulations.
Madhavan: Madhavan has a very interesting pluripotent stem cell model in whach she oan
explore how “brain environment” promotes survival of these cells. The idea is to mampu late the
external brain cell environment in old rats to see whether stem cells and neurons benefit, using
a variety of behavioral tests as outcome measures for assessing good cognitive heaith.
Hecht/Reiman/Barnes: Hecht has discovered a class of molecules known as “multifunctional
radical quenchers”(MRQs) that have free radical self-propagation properties that are antioxidant
- in nature and increase ATP production. | would like to extend these tests to live animals, with
tests of cognition in aging. Reiman is very interested in these compounds with respect to
human testing in disease, and in assisting with human clinical trials for such compounds.
Whiteman: Whiteman studies the detoxification effects of plant-based chemicals known as
“mustard oils”, and has a test syStem in flies that is extremely promising. After further
development of the behavior screening fly model system, a number of the compounds that are
particularly successful in this model can be tested in cognitive aging rat models for efficacy.
Hruby/Restifo: Hruby is a well-known medicinal chemist, with particular talents in synthesis
methods development, for which he has won numerous awards. We have begun discussing
targets for compound creation that we can test in Restifo’s high throughput fly memory
screening tool, with a goal of testing promising compounds in cognitive aging rat models.
Mehl/Glisky: These mvest:gators are conducting a social media study in the elderly that should
provide helpful practtcal solutnons for social isolation that sometimes occurs in older individuals.
Optlmizatlon and deve!opment of these too!s could result in cognitive aids for at risk elderly.
Kaszniak: A oompletely different approach may also be fruitful to explore with respect to
cognitive wellbeing in older adults — namely the potential benefits of meditation practice.
Kaszniak is an expert in program evaluation of different forms of these practices and, combined
with other approaches, may also become an important component for use in a “cognitive health
tool kit” that we are all interested in developing for the elderly.




Additional lnformaison on Endowed Chair and MBRF Gsft Acccunts
University of Arizona -~ -
Evelyn F. McKnight B;sfamvlnsmute a

2011/2012 Final Figures for Endowed Chair and ‘MBRFVGif't' Accounts
The final figures are available now for the 2011/2012 fiscal accounting year, and
the investment report for that time period is given below in Table 1.

Endowed Chair e ==
“{8ummaryfor 12 months: endmg June 30,2012 - - : . -
AccountName: Evelyn E McKnight Chair for Learning and Memory in Agmg )

. A. Beginning Balance on July 1, 2011 $ 866326.00
B. investment Growth _ $ (13,173.85)
C. Distributions (fo Endowed Chair Expendible) ) o $ .(32,548.00)
D. Additional Contributions , ' $ ‘
E. Ending Balance on June 30,2012 $

820,604.35

= annn ann}

Institute
Summary for 12 months endmg June 30,2012
AccountName: EvelynF. McKnight Brain Institute

Jo A Begmmng Balancg on July 1, 2011 . $ 4,136487.00
© 7 B. Investment Growth : $  (65:865.80)
C. Distributions (to institute expendabie account) $ (743518, 96)
D. Additional Contributions $ -
E. Ending Balance on June 30, 2012 $ 3327102.15

Endowed Chair Account -

For the Endowed Chair Account, the initial 2006/2007 Endowment was
$1,000,000. Because of losses in the investments (change in market value), the
beginning Endowment balance for 2012/2013 is $820,604 (Table 2). Naturally
the hope is that the market will turn around, and we'll have more “positive”
outcome years in the future. Regardless, some distributions will be made yearly
to the Chanr and over the next decade it will likely be $30 000 .

AY

Table 2. Evelyn F. Mcnghtﬁndowed ghlr for Learning and Memory in

A m from 2006 to 2012 , 4
o Sl Yeart Year2 | Ve 3 Your 4 , Years Year6 Year?
1 ‘_ - 2006/2007 | 2007/2008° 2008/2009 § 2009/2010 20'10/2011 2011/2012 201212013,

- [GhangeinWriet value - ['§ 58618 | § (108259)] § (203.430)} 5 42,840 13- 7og00 s sy

Table 1. tnvestment Repért Ju!y ‘1 2011 Jﬁne 30"" 2@12* N *" T




proposal to be carried out, and it would potentially extend significant funding of
the Institute through at least 2022. An intermediate option that could be
considered is another gift from the MBRF that would be placed into an
endowment that would be matched (Option 3). - All indications from those | have
spoken to at the University of Arizona are that there is little opportunity for
matching funds to go into a permanent endowment. Thus the match would be

- used to support the. research mission of the Institute, with the endowment used

“as leverage to acquire these additional funds. With thxs scenario, significant
expenditures for my laboratory and a reduced number (compared to the second
option) of other projects would continue until 2021, and the interest on the
investment would continue in perpetu:ty The first option is outlined in Table 3.

‘Option 2 js estimated in Table 4 and Option 3 is estimated in Table 5. The
options outlined in Tables 4 and 5 depend on the decision of the MBRF on my

proposal, and my ability to raise the relevant ma‘tchmg funds Admittedly, |
cannot pred:ct either with certaxnty

Table 4. Estimated chount_ in Futuré Years ifa ‘$5 Miilion Gift is Expendable and Matched |

Quasn Endowment

w7 o yr8 yrs yr10 S yrﬁ S yr12 o yrs ~'vyr"14, : V.yHSQ.‘ Lyre. ,-,yr’rqyf

202112022 20201208

201212018 2013/2014 201412015 - 20152016 20162017 2017/2018 2018/2019  2019/2020 202042021

MoKnight Contribution

6% development fund

Long-term grow th (3.6%) $118,776 $80,888 . $76,420 $63,685 $61,710 $40,522 $30,180 $19.827
Withdraw als to expendable account ’

Withdraw als {o Barnes Projects -§050,000  -$80,888  -$76,420  -$63685  -$51,710  -$40522 -$330,800 -§330,800  -$233,494
ftio ight Proj ;! -§: -§288,118 30 $0 $0

Permanant Endowment

WMcKnight Contribution $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000- $1,000,000

6% development fund

e
~$60,000 -380,000  -$80,000 -$60,000  -$80,000
Long-term grow th (3.6%) i $36,000 69,840  $103680  $137,520  $171,360  $169200 $169,200  $160,200
income to the Endow ment (Barnes) ~$36,000 -869,840  -$103680 -$137,520 -$171,360 -$169200 -$168200 -$169,200

$160,200
-$168,200

Match

$1,000,000 - $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000

Match

hstitule Support (Barnes Projects) -$624112  -$603,740  -$582.635  -$560,770  -$538,118
Institute Support{Additional McKnight Projects

-§375,888  -$396260 -$417,365 -$439,230 -8467882

Total Distributions

=Te¥rh Grow th estimated at 3.6%
hcome 1o Institute esﬁmated at 3.6%




Cianciotto.Melanie

From: Sacco, Ralph [RSacco@med.miami.edu]

Sent: : Wednesday, October 09, 2013 1: 12 PM

To: - J. Lee Dockery

Cc: Wright, Clinton; Cianciotto.Melanie; Nina Ellenbogen Raim, MD,JD; Mike Dockery; Gene
Ryerson, MD; Robert Wah, MD; DAlessandro.Nicole; HenryH Raattama Esq

Subject: RE: October Update

Lee,

I wanted to provide another update on the Schoninger Foundation dissolution in anticipation
of your October Board meeting. Progress continues, albeit at a slower pace than we all

~would-like;-but-the-end-is-in-sight.—I-have received-word-that all-family members-agree—

with the dissolution of the Foundation and the attorneys are petitioning the court for the
termination. [See an email correspondence copied below.] The attorneys state they should
have a hearing sometime in November. I continue to be very optimistic that we should have a
final resolution of the original match as well as incremental support before the end of
2013.

We continue to work hard and make strides in all our efforts as an Evelyn McKnight Brain
Institute. Thanks to you and the entire Board for your support, patience and understanding.

Hope all is well with you.

Best regards,
Ralph

Ralph L. Sacco MD MS FAHA FAAN

Professor and Olemberg Chair of Neurology Executive Director, McKnight Brain Institute Chief
of Neurology, Jackson Memorial Hospital Miller School of Medicine University of Miami
Office: 305-243-7519

For NEUROLOGY Patient Appointments: (305) 243-3100

From: Castro, Maria Victoria

Sent: Wednesday, September 25, 2013 4:61 PM
To: 'Don Paul'’

Cc: 'fhsandstrom@gmail.com'; Fogel, Bernard
Subject: RE: Schoninger Foundation

Dear Don,

I could not be more pleased for you, Fred and myself that we have received the consent of
all of the parties that will allow us to go forth and ask for final resolution by the
courts.

I would like to briefly give you my understanding from the records that we have in my office
and the medical school as to how these dollars will be distributed to programs already
agreed to by Jane and I believe the family. We are presently supporting a professor of
Neuropsychology whose emphasis is on memory disorders in the elderly, named the Alexandria



1 UNIVERSITY OF MIAMI
& BHealth | s soroon

REVERSTTY OF RIANE HEASTH SYSTEM

Nealogs | 0f MEDICINE

RALPHL. SACCO, MD, MS, FAHA, FAAN

Chairman, Depariment of Neurology

Olemberg Family Chalr in Newrological Disorders

Miller Professor of Neurology, Epidemiclogy, & Human Gensfics
Leonard M, Miller School of Medicine

University of Miami

Executive Director, Evelyn F, McKnight Brain Institufe

Chief of Neurology Setvice, Jackson Memorial Hospital

October 8, 2013

J. Lee Dockery, M.D.

Michael L. Dockery, M.D.

Nina Ellenbogen Raim, M.D., J.D.
Gene G. Ryerson, M.D.

Robert M. Wah, M.D.

Ms. Melanie A. Cianciotto

Henry H, Raatama, Jr., J.D.

The Evelyn F. McKnight Brain Research Foundation
SunTrust Bank '

Post Office Box 620005
Orlando, Florida 32862-0005

Dear Trustees:

On behalf of the University of Miami Leonard M. Miller School of Medicine, please find
enclosed the growth pool annual investment report for the fiscal year ending May 31, 2013
prepared by Colonial Consulting. Per the terms of our endowment agreement (section 5.3) the
University of Miami forwards this report to you annually. Ihave also included the market value
analysis for the endowment for the same fiscal period.

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact Marsha Kegley at (305) 243-2290.
Thank you for your continued support and collaboration in our efforts,

Warmest 1egards

(A2A

RalphLSacco M.D., M.S.
Enclosures

ce:  Clinton Wright, ML.D. Ms. Tleana Nunez
Ms. Rebecca Lee, MA, BS  Ms. Karen Wilkening
Ms. Marsha Kegley

Depariment of Neurology
1120 NW 14th Streat, Clinical Research Building, Suite 1352 | Miardd, FL 33136
Ph: 305-243-7519 | Fax: 365-243-7081
rsaaco@med miami.edu




e

M¢Knight053113

Summary

Evelyn F. McKnight Center for Age-Related Memory Loss
at the Miller School of Medicine
Market Value Analysis

May 31, 2013
McKnight Contribution $5,000,000
UM Match 2,530,864
Transfers from Other University Funds 1,110,302
Investment Return 2,935,642
Distributions for Spending (2,925,948}
5/31/13 Endowment Balance $8,650,860

Unmatched Balance $2,469,136




McKnight053113

Spdg Unmatched Bal

Motional UM Match:

Unmatched notional balance at 6/1/13 2,469,136

Endowment investment return rate for the 3 years ended 5/31/13 10.26000000%

Endowment spending palicy rate 13-14 4.45845745%
Difference (investment return rate less spending rate) 5.74154255%

Rate difference {if positive] applied to unmatched balance and to be added to actual endowment 141,766

110,085

Spending distribution 13-14 on unmatched balace

Actual endowment:
Market value at 6/1/13
Spending distribution 13-14

8,650,860
385,695




University of Miami - All Managed Assets
Performance Periods Ending: May 31, 2013

Groy ool Total Composite 12/31/19%0 0.2 ,
Growth Pool Market Benchmark* 12/31/1990 19.7 11.6 2.9 4.4 6.6
Value (+/-) SR S e 30  -14 04 0.4 0.3

15 Year Growth Pool Risk/Return *

10.0
8.0
8.0
7.0
6.0
5.0
4.0
3.0
2.0

Annualized Rate of Return (%)

9.00 10.00 11.00 12.00 13.00 14.00
Standard Deviation

& Growth Pool B Market Benchmark

Growth of Assets

] o
8@ 3
1,200.0 L
1,000.0
2
§ 8000
£ 6000
b
F 4000
200.0
0.0

1995
1996
1997
1998
1999
2000
2001
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009

2002
2003
2010
2011
2012
2013

Fiscal Year Ending May 31st

& Growth Pool

1. The Market Benchmark is a weighted average of market indices reflecting the Growth Pool's strategic allocation through time.

Page 1




University of Miami

Manager Structure - Market Values and Allocations
As of May 31, 2013

Parmenter Realty il - ,  Real Estate 4%
WCP Real Estate Fund | Real Estate 0.2%
WCP Real Estate Fund Ii : _Real Estate S 64 - 07%
SRI Nine REIT Real Estate 5.9 0.7%
Metropolitan Real Estate Real Estate : 17 0.2%
LBA Realty Real Estate 6.6 0.8%

Colchester Global Bonds “Global Bonds « 4 5.0%
Vanguard Infiation Protected” Us TiPs 27.8 3.1%

Cash Clearing Account

Total Managed Assets 885.0 100.0%

% of Domestic Equity: 11.7%

1)

Portfolio Liquidity Restrictions: Based on Market Value

100%
90%
80%
0% —
60%
50%
40°%
30%
20%
10%

0%

Growth Pool

2 Liguid = Semi-Liguid <30 Days = Semi-Liquid > 30 Days = llliguid = Locked

Page 3




University of Miami Growth Pool

Equity Portfolio Exposures 12
Data as of June 30, 2013 3

Consumer Discretibnary 16.4 -3.1 19.5 3.3 16.1 <1.0 17.1 15.0

ConsumerStaples =~ 91 16 107 74 unz 08 126 108
Energy 10.3 0.8 11.0 9.5 8.8 0.8 96 81
Financials : 17.0 11 181 159 182 w06 188 137
Health Care 10.8 -0.6 11.4 10.2 11.9 -1.3 13.2 10,5
_Industrials 12.5 45 141 1o ' '
Infoermation Technology 12.7 -0.3 12.9 124

Materials ... 69 w08 79 60

Telecom Services 2.4 2.3

ETF/Other 0.8 0.4

Total Portfolio 101.2 -10.9 112.1 90.3 109.1 -89.1 118.1 100.0

North America 60.9 70.1 51.7 59.2 ~7.7 66.8 51.5
Developed Asia ’ 9.7 ’ 9.6 114 114 11.3
Net Global Industrial Sector Exposure {%)

0
25.0 .
20.0 5
1i5.0
10.0
50 - e ——
© o o
0.0 e

Cons, Disc. Cons. Staples  Energy Financials Health Care Industrials Info Tech  Materials Telcom Utilities  ETF/Other

@ Equity-Focused  # Traditional 2 MSCI AC World

Net Geographic Exposure (%6) Net Currency Exposure Relative to MSCI AC World (%)

600 517515523 S
50.0 usb
EUR

40.0
144
30.0 GBP
100 - CHF
00 - - Other DM
North America  Developed Developed Asia  Emerging Other EM
Europe Markets ' ’
-15.0 -5.0 5.0 15.0

@ Equity-Focused & Traditional = MSCl AC World

@ Equity-Focused & Traditional

1. Nominal and delta-adjusted exposures are used where possible to reflect non-linearity in portfolio positioning.

2. Equity-Focused includes long-only, beta-one, and long/short equity portfolios where applicable. Traditional includes
long-only and beta-one equity portfolios where applicable.

3. Date of Exposure Data as a % of Portfolio Carve Out
Equity-Focused Portfolio: Jun-13 (100.0%); Mar-13 (0.0%) | Traditional Equity Portfolio: Jun-13 (100.0%); Mar-13 (0.0%)

Page 5




University of Miami - Growth Pool
Inception to Date Performance vs. Relevant Benchmark(s)

Periods Ending - May 31, 2013
Net of Fees

Davidson Kempner {10/01/93) 9.9 -0.6 NA 19.7
HFRI Event Driven 105 , : S 197
Watershed Capital (12/31/07) 3.6 0.3 NA 5.4
'HFRI Event Driven 3.9 5.4

Wellington Diversified Inflation Hedges (08/31/06) 23 5.1 ‘NA 6.8
DI UBS Commodity : 27 R i 6.8
Cambrian CamCap Resources (9/30/11) -0.9 3.2 NA 1.7

-DIUBS ccmmodlty ' 4.1 1.7

Oak Tree (12/31/98) -0.3 NA 14.4

Merrill Ly’} ch High Yield 14.4
Regiment Capital (06/30/07) -3.1 NA 5.9
Merrill Lynch High Yield , -89 : o - 5.9

\Ilkmg Global Equmes ] (11/30/ 10) 12.0 -4.2 8.5 2.5
; | 163 S 25
HERI Equ;ty Hedged ' , 35 ‘ 25

Wellington Archipelago {11/30/04) 8.0 1.8 3.3 85
bt ot | e ’ s , sk

6.0 0.4 2.7 7.3

56 , | gy

33 = 7.3

6.0 0.5 3.6 5.2

€ e iomg

24 ~ 5.2

10.0 -6.0 3.5 1.2

S&P 500 160 1.2

HFRI Equity Hedged 6.5 e o 12

Colchester Global Bond {12/31/09) 5.4 3.2 NA 3.4
Citigroup World Government Bond 2.2 34
Vanguard Inflation Protected Securities (03/31/10) 6.7 0.0 NA 3.2
Barclays Capital US TIPS 6.7 3.2

1. NA: Not Applicable

Page 7




Memorandum of Understanding
McKnight Brain Research Foundation Gift agreement
University of Miami Medical Schogl_

The purpose of this memorandum is to clarify the infent and understanding of the trustees of the
Evelyn F. McKnight Brain Research Foundation ("Trustees") and the Evelyn McKnight Center
for Age Related Memory Loss (“Center™) at the University of Miami Miller School of Medicine
("UM") which has been fully operational since June, 2008,

The goal of the first amendment to the Gift Agreement dated July 29, 2008 was two-fold, 1.
Insure that the unfunded portion of the endowment continued to grow at the same rate as the
funded balance; 2. The Center will receive spendable income at the same rate of return on the
unfunded balance as the rate received on the funded balance.

To implement the intent and understanding the Trustees and UM agree as follows:
Commencing for UM Fiscal Year 2010 and each fiscal year thereafter;

1. UM will distribute to the Center an amount equal to the "unmaiched balance" multiplied
by the UM Endowment Spending Policy Rate for the fiscal year in question and

2. Ifthe average of the Endowment Investment Rate of Refurn for the fiscal year in question
and the 2 immediately preceding years exceeds the UM Endowment Spending Policy
Rate, an amount equal to the excess rate multiplied by the "uvnmatched balance” will be
added to the MBRF Endowment.

UM shall pay amounts from sources other than the MBRF Endowment. The "unmatched
balance” at 6/1/2010 is agreed to be $3,177,215.

-Aitached is a computation for the UM Fiscal Year 2010. It is agreed this computation
accurately applies the above understanding and will be followed in future years.

Signatures:/ae\-' 3 @‘MJ
,ﬁ,, A??«zv@w&ﬁ

gfﬁ“ Tl

Date: 0 (’,J{)m 3 2010

{M2975179:1}




pauluiis}ep 89 0

Bunosyy seopsni] jo pieog JHGW

pauluLe}ep o

Bunyseyy sespsnij jo pieog MG

Isjuen eouslisjuo)
BpLO| JO AjisiaAlun UOYIH

¥102 'GZ - €T Hdy
BpLO| Jo Ajisieaiun

Bunesiy jeuoN}ISUj-403U]
Bunsapy sesisnij jo pieog SN

(rL0Z-£402) SyueAT/Sozeq bunwoadn
uoilepuNo 4 yosieasay uieig ybiuMon

¥10Z ‘g1 Aeniged
14 ‘opuelQ

Bunesyy sesysni] jo pieog JHGW

H-Q swioodjjeg obipu]
osheg obsi(y ues UCHIH
‘wd g8 -0e9

€102 ‘0l JsquiencN
uondeosy/uoISSag J1S0d
vD ‘obeig ueg

Bunoeoy seajsni jo pieog JHEW




